
 
CDRPA Meeting Agenda May 11th, 2021 Page 1 of 2 

 
 

 
  

                   
Working Together to Enhance the Economic Vitality of North Central Washington 

 
 

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 
Meeting Agenda 
May 11th, 2021 

9:00 am 
 
 
 

In order to maximize social distancing related to COVID-19, the meeting 
 will be held at the CTC and remotely using Zoom Virtual Conference. 

 
   

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
*Note: When the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority meeting is called to order, the Port of Chelan 
County and Port of Douglas County meetings are simultaneously called to order. 

  
II. INTRODUCTIONS 
 
III. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
IV. CONSENT AGENDAS 
 

CDRPA: Approval of Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Minutes of April 27th, 2021 
Meeting; CDRPA Resolution No. 2021-11 Voiding Check #8022; and Check Register Pages 
#2021-12-#2021-15, including Electronic Transfers 
 
POCC: Approval of Check Register Page #2021-05 
 
PODC: Approval of Check Register Page #2021-03 
  

V. PRESENTATIONS 
• SBDC 1st Qtr 2021 Report – Ron Nielsen & John Morosco   
• Rock Island Site 

o Adaptive Reuse Study 
o Planned Action Environmental Impact Statement 

• Tax Increment Financing Presentation – Cynthia Weed 
 

VI. CDRPA ACTION ITEMS   
(1) Option to Purchase Agreement – Restoration 1 
(2) IB #2 Parking Lot Improvements – Authorization to Seek Bids 
(3) Executive Flight Building – Fundraising Events 

 
VII. CDRPA INFORMATIONAL ITEMS (Board may take action on any items listed)  

(4) Latino Trades Workshop/Mercado Concept 
(5) Chelan County .09 Sales Tax Application – Cashmere Mill District 
(6) CTC Marketing 
(7) Chelan/Douglas Property Owners – Billing Zip Codes Outside of Washington 
(8) Aviation Ramp Project – Glycol Collection System 

 
 



 
CDRPA Meeting Agenda May 11th, 2021 Page 2 of 2 

 
 

 
VIII. MISCELLANEOUS STAFF REPORTS 

• CEO 
• Director of Finance & Administration 
• Director of Airports 
• Director of Economic & Business Development 
• Public Works & Capital Projects Manager 
• Property & Maintenance Manager 
• CTC Manager 

 
IX. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
X. REVIEW CALENDAR OF EVENTS 

 
XI. ITEMS FROM BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
XII. EXECUTIVE SESSION: An Executive Session may be called during the meeting.  The purpose 

must be announced and is limited by RCW 42.30.110.  Examples include: (1) to discuss with legal 
counsel litigation, potential litigation and/or legal risks (RCW 42.30.110(1)(i)); (2) to consider the 
acquisition of real estate by lease or purchase when public knowledge regarding such consideration 
would cause a likelihood of increased price (RCW 42.30.110(1)(b)); and (3) to consider the 
minimum price at which real estate will be offered for sale or lease when public knowledge regarding 
such consideration would cause a likelihood of decreased price (final action selling or leasing public 
property shall be taken in a meeting open to the public)(RCW 42.30.110(1)(c)); and (4) to evaluate 
the qualifications of an applicant for public employment or to review the performance of a public 
employee(RCW 42.30.110(1)(g)) 

 
XIII. ADJOURN 

 
PLEASE NOTE:  The agenda is tentative only. The Board of Directors may add, delete, or postpone items and may take 
action on any item not on the agenda. The Directors may also move agenda items during the meeting. 
If you wish to address the Regional Port Authority on a non-agenda or an agenda item, please raise your hand to be 
recognized by the President.  When you have been recognized, give your name and address before your comments. 
The Board of Directors are committed to maintaining a meeting atmosphere of mutual respect and speakers are 
encouraged to honor this principal. 

 
The Port Authority office is ADA compliant. Please contact the Administrative Office at 509-884-4700 at least three (3) 
days in advance if you need any language, hearing or physical accommodation.  



 April 27th, 2021 Page 1 of 4  

 

             
    
            

            Board of Directors 
 Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 

   Meeting Minutes 
  April 27th, 2021 

9:00 am 
 
Present:  Directors    
 JC Baldwin, Director    Jim Huffman, Director   
 Rory Turner, Director    W. Alan Loebsack, Director   
 Donn Etherington, Director        Mark Spurgeon, Director   
  
 Staff 
 Jim Kuntz, Chief Executive Officer   Monica Lough, Dir. of Finance & Admin.  
 Trent Moyers, Director of Airports  Ron Russ, Property Manager  
 Ron Cridlebaugh, Dir. of Economic Dev.   Craig Larsen, Econ. Dev. Manager   
 Stacie de Mestre, Public Works & Cap. Projects Mgr. Tricia Degnan, CTC Manager (Zoom) 
 Cami Harris, Executive Assistant  Sarah Deenik, Comm. Coordinator (Zoom) 
 Pete Fraley, Legal Counsel   Bealinda Tidd, Accounting Specialist (Zoom) 
 Quentin Batjer, Legal Counsel  Laura Camarillo Reyes, CTC Asst. (Zoom) 
 Esther McKivor, Accounting Specialist (Zoom)  
      
 Guests    

Mayor Bob Goedde, City of Chelan (Zoom)   Lisa Pritzl, Maul Foster (Zoom) 
Erin McCardle, City of Chelan (Zoom)  Ankur Tohan, K&L Gates (Zoom)  
Erik Howe, RH2   Jack Penning, Volaire Aviation   
Todd Banks, Kenmore Air (Zoom)  Ken Johannessen, KOZI (Zoom) 

 Linda Haglund, Wen. Downtown (Zoom)  Lisa Parks, Maul Foster (Zoom) 
 Jerri Barkley, Wen. Valley Chamber (Zoom) 
  
The Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority (CDRPA) Meeting was called to order 
at 9:00 am. Due to COVID-19 restrictions, the meeting was held at Confluence 
Technology Center and via Zoom as previously posted in the required Public 
Meeting Notice. 
 
Introductions were made. 
 
Conflict of Interest: None 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
CDRPA CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
The Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Consent Agenda consisting of consisting of 
Minutes of April 13th, 2021 Meeting; and March 2021 Commission Meeting Calendar was 
presented and the following action was taken:  
 

 
Motion No.  04-11-21 CDRPA 

  Moved by:    Mark Spurgeon 
  Seconded by:  JC Baldwin 

To approve the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Consent Agenda 
consisting of Minutes of April 13th, 2021 Meeting; and March 2021 
Commission Meeting Calendar, as presented. 
 
     Motion passed 6-0. 
 
 
     

 



 April 27th, 2021 Page 2 of 4  

 
 
PRESENTATIONS: 
 
Former Silicon Smelter at Rock Island - Maul Foster and K&L Gates (via Zoom) – Lisa 
Parks from Maul Foster provided background on the work done to date at the Rock Island 
Smelter concerning environmental site characterization. Lisa Pritzl from Maul Foster provided 
a review of the environmental investigations that have been completed over the years 
including the 2019 work completed by Maul Foster.  Pritzl reviewed several options on future 
characterization of the property. Ankur Tohan from K&L Gates provided several options on the 
clean-up process going forward. Discussions ensued. More information will be brought to the 
Board at a future meeting.  
 
Pangborn Airport Air Service Update - Volaire Aviation – Jack Penning from Volaire 
Aviation provided an update on air service development at Pangborn. He reviewed the status 
of air service as a result of the pandemic and the outlook post-pandemic. He continues to 
work with airlines to secure future expanded air service at Pangborn. An opportunity for 
discussion and questions was provided. The Directors asked a host of questions.  
 
CDRPA ACTION ITEMS: 

 
Surplus Property Certification – Kuntz provided information on the extra furniture at 
Executive Flight Building. In order to sell or dispose of the property, the CEO must provide 
written certification that it is surplus to the needs of the Port. Staff recommends offering said 
property to small municipalities in Chelan and Douglas Counties and then place the remainder 
in a public auction. Regional Port Directors and Staff would be able to participate in the 
auction.  
 

Motion No.  04-12-21 CDRPA 
  Moved by:    Mark Spurgeon 
  Seconded by:  Jim Huffman  

To accept the CEO’s written certification that said property is surplus to 
the needs of the Regional Port and offer said property to other 
municipal entities in Chelan and Douglas Counties. Any remaining 
property shall be placed in a public auction and Regional Port Directors 
and Staff may participate in the auction. 

      
          Motion passed 5-1. 
 
 
Right of Entry Agreements – Staff & Legal Counsel recommend authorizing the CEO to 
negotiate and enter into generic Right of Entry Agreements to allow prospects to conduct 
initial investigations regarding real property owned or managed by the Regional Port. The 
following action was taken:  

 
Motion No.  04-13-21 CDRPA 

  Moved by:    JC Baldwin 
  Seconded by:  Mark Spurgeon  

To delegate to the CEO the authority to negotiate and enter Right of 
Entry Agreements, from time to time, to allow prospects to conduct 
initial investigations regarding any real property managed by the 
CDRPA. 

      
          Motion passed 6-0. 
  
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS: 
 

• Chelan Airport –  
o Waterline Extension – The Legislature recently approved $5.7 in funding for the 

Chelan Airport Waterline Extension Project.   
o Kenmore Air – Update on initial discussion regarding service at Lake Chelan. 
 

 



 April 27th, 2021 Page 3 of 4  

 
• Federal Lobbyist Update – Kuntz provided an update on the Regional Port’s 

participation in securing a Federal Lobbyist in conjunction with City of Wenatchee and 
Link Transit. The Regional Port has agreed to participate at $1,000 per month, and 
continues to explore participation from additional regional entities.  

 
• Executive Flight Building – Use for Community Fundraising Events – Kuntz 

reported the Regional Port has been approached to host a fundraising event at 
Executive Flight. Discussion ensued and the Board directed staff to develop a policy 
pertaining to these types of requests. A draft policy will be brought to the Board at an 
upcoming meeting.  
 

• Pangborn Airport 1st Qtr 2021 Activity Report – Moyers reviewed the Activity 
Report for 1st Qtr. 2021 including fuel sales, parking revenue, and rental car revenue.
          

      
MISC STAFF REPORTS: 
 

 Kuntz provided information and updates including:  
• Recent meeting with Restoration 1 concerning Lineage South. 
• Reviewed Latino Trades Workshop Concept for the Giga Watt Pods. Kuntz will attend a 

Hispanic Business Council meeting next week to further discuss. 
• Diamond Foundry update. 
• Update on Chelan County PUD draft Interlocal Agreement concerning the Regional 

Port’s participation in the 5th Street Redevelopment RFP. More information will be 
brought to Directors at an upcoming meeting. 

• $1.5 million was approved in the State budget for water infrastructure improvement 
projects in Malaga. 

• Update on GA Terminal Building Improvement Study; $25,000 was allocated for the 
study in the 2021 Regional Port Capital Budget. 

• Reviewed several local, State, and Federal grant opportunities. 
• Chelan County’s Emergency Operations Center is looking for space in Olds Station. 

 
 Lough provided information and updates including:  

• Reported the Long Term Care Act will take effect January 1st, 2022 with mandatory 
payroll deductions.   

 
 Moyers provided information and updates including: 

•  Providing a presentation to WSDOT this Thursday. 
•  Began advertising for the open Line Service position. 

 
 Cridlebaugh provided information and updates including:  

•  Regional Port approached by a local food truck vendor interested in locating at the 
Port’s Batterman site. Discussion ensued. Staff will work with Legal Counsel to draft a 
Concessionaire Agreement. 

  
 de Mestre provided information and updates including:  

• Ads for in-house Small Works and Professional Services Roster programs began last 
week. Already received 23 responses. 

• Update on Waterville Runway Pavement Project – Scheduled to begin on May 21. 
• Update on Pangborn Apron Rehabilitation Project – working on final design and will go 

out to bid approximately May 26.   
 
 Degnan provided information and updates including:  

• CTC elevators malfunction and repair update. 
• Provided a 1st quarter 2021 Meeting Center report. 
• Reported Rivercom decided not to proceed with leasing space in CTC South. 

 
 



 April 27th, 2021 Page 4 of 4  

 
PUBLIC COMMENT – An opportunity for public comment was provided; however, no public 
comments were received. 
 
REVIEW CALENDAR OF EVENTS: Did not review 
 
ITEMS FROM BOARD OF DIRECTORS: Directors provided various updates. 
 
 
Meeting adjourned at 1:20 pm. 
   
 
Signed and dated this 11th day of May, 2021. 
 
 
CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY 
 
 
  
  
  _________________________________ 
JC Baldwin, Director     Jim Huffman, Director 
 
          
     ________________________________ 
Donn Etherington, Director    Mark Spurgeon, Director 
 
 
___________________________________  _________________________________ 
Rory Turner, Director     W. Alan Loebsack, Director 



____________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority No. 2021-11 Voiding Check 8022 Page 1 of 1 
 

CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY 
 RESOLUTION NO. 2021-11 

RESOLUTION TO VOID CHECK NO. 8022 
 

 

Whereas Check No. 8022 in the amount of $5,000.00, payable to Strong Balance, 
on Register Page No. 2021-11 was created and signed on March 31, 2021. 

Whereas check was not received by payee and has not cleared the Chelan Douglas 
Regional Port Authority main checking account, and is considered to be lost in the mail at 
this time.  Check # is being issued as a replacement. 

Now, therefore be it resolved by the Board of Directors of the Chelan Douglas 
Regional Port Authority, a municipal corporation of the State of Washington, that Check No. 
8022 be declared VOID. 

 

Dated this 11th day of May, 2021. 

 

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 
 

 

_____________________________  ___________________________ 
JC Baldwin, Director    Jim Huffman, Director 
 
_____________________________  ___________________________ 
Donn Etherington, Director   Mark Spurgeon, Director 
 
_____________________________  ___________________________ 
Rory Turner, Director    W. Alan Loebsack, Director 
 

 































2021 Wenatchee SBDC Q1 
2021 Report

CDRPA



Our Stakeholders

• Chelan and Douglas County Businesses
• Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
• Wenatchee, Leavenworth, and Lake Chelan 

Chambers of Commerce
• Wenatchee Downtown Association
• Wenatchee Valley College
• SBA
• Washington State University - WSBDC



Chelan and Douglas County Residents 
Attending SBDC Webinars



Wenatchee SBDC Q1 2021

• Advising Hours
• Total Hours – 210

• Community Businesses Served
• 26 businesses– 110 contacts (Zoom meetings, phone 

calls, emails, and texts messages)

• Capital Infusion for business clients
• $311,300

• Business Webinar participation by our staff
• 59 webinars  4,882 Chelan and Douglas County 

attendees



Examples of Webinars Conducted 
By John and Ron in Q1

• Restaurant Revitalization Fund (RRF)
• Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) application and loan 

forgiveness
• Business Survival Strategies – Cash Flow Webinar
• Survival Guide for Food Service Operations On Demand
• Best Practices for Hotel Operators During COVID-19
• Working Washington Round 4



SBDC Community Outreach and 
Participation

• Updates and Notices for PPP, EIDL, Targeted EIDL 
Advance, RRF, and SVOG information sent to:

• Wenatchee Chamber of Commerce
• Leavenworth Chamber of Commerce
• Lake Chelan Chamber of Commerce
• Wenatchee Downtown Association
• CDRPA
• SBDC clients
Coordinated with WA. State Department of Commerce on 
the WWR4 grants. Steve Burke and Ron Nielsen in 
conjunction with Commerce staff, did four webinars 
statewide on how to apply for the grant



SBDC Community Outreach and 
Participation

• Wenatchee Valley College – Self Employment 
Assistance Program (SEAP) business plan 
development and advising for their clients.

• Round Table discussion with Congressman 
Newhouse

• Attended AVISTA market research webinar
• Coordinated with Thurston EDC for ScaleUp

program to be offered in Chelan and Douglas 
County’s

• Worked with 2 Quest clients to refinance their 
Quest loans



Chelan Douglas Combined

Name: Definition for Stakeholder Primary Scorecard

Cumulative to Date: 1/1/2021 - 3/31/2021

Current Value: 1/1/21 - 3/31/21 

Data Elements
Current 
Value

Cumulative 
to Date

Current 
Value

Cumulative 
to Date

CASE TOTALS (Clients)

   Number of Clients Counseled 38 38 30 30

   Number of New Clients 23 23 14 14

Company Status

   Pre‐venture, Nascent 15 15 8 8

   Startups 2 2 2 2

   In Business 21 21 20 20

CASE TOTALS (Total Hours)

   All Prep + Contact Client Hours 134 134 76 76

   New Client Hours 32 32 14 14

CASE TOTALS (Impacts)

   Capital Infusion 195,000 195,000 116,300 116,300

   Number Businesses Created 1 1 0 0

   Jobs Created + Retained (FT + PT) 1 1 0 0

   Jobs Supported (In Business) 136 136 486 486

CASE TOTALS (Training/Events) 0 0

   Number of Training Events 5 5 10 10

   Number of Training Attendees 58 58 453 453

DEMOGRAPHICS (Type of Business, # of Clients)

   Accommodation and Food Services 6 6 4 4

   Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing and Hunting 1 1 1 1

   Construction 1 1 1 1

   Healthcare and Social Assistance 0 0 3 3

   Manufacturing 2 2 2 2

   Retail 2 2 5 5

   Service 2 2 6 6

   Wholesale 1 1 0 0

   Other 5 5 4 4

   No Response 18 18 4 4

DEMOGRAPHICS (Business Ownership Gender)

   Male 3 3 3 3

   Female 7 7 13 13

   Male/Female 7 7 5 5

   No Response 21 21 9 9

DEMOGRAPHICS (Ethnic Background ‐ Race)

   American Indian or Alaskan Native 1 1 1 1

   Asian 1 1 0 0

   Black or African American 2 2 0 0

   White 22 22 20 20

   Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0

   No Response 12 12 9 9

DEMOGRAPHICS (Ethnicity)

   Hispanic 7 7 2 2

   Non‐Hispanic 21 21 17 17

   No Response 10 10 11 11

John Ron



DEMOGRAPHICS (Business Ownership Vet. Status)

   Veteran 2 2 0 0

   Service‐Disabled Veteran 0 0 1 1

   Non‐veteran 14 14 16 16

   No Response 22 22 13 13

COUNSELING ACTIVITY (Areas of Counseling, # of Sessions)

   Business Accounting/Budget 2 2 4 4

   Business Plan 17 17 0 0

   Buy/Sell Business 3 3 4 4

   Cash Flow Management 3 3 5 5

   COVID‐19 Related 5 5 6 6

   Financing/Capital 0 0 5 5

   Human Resources/Employee Mg't 1 1 0 0

   International Trade 1 1 0 0

   Managing a Business 33 33 15 15

   Marketing/Sales 0 0 1 1

   Start‐up Assistance 3 3 2 2

   No Response 0 0 1 1

   Other 38 38 30 30

















Purchase and Sale Agreement 1 
{PAF2410561.DOC;2/23058.040020/ } 

PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT  
 
 THIS PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT (hereinafter “Agreement”), made this date, is by 
and between the PORT OF CHELAN COUNTY, a Washington municipal corporation (“Seller”), 
and CENTWA, LLC, a Washington limited liability company, d/b/a RESTORATION 1 OF CENTRAL 
WA (“Purchaser”).  Individually the Purchaser and Seller may be referred to herein as a “Party” 
or collectively as the “Parties.” 
 
1. Agreement/Property.  Seller agrees to sell and Purchaser agrees to purchase Seller’s 
interest in real property located in the county of Chelan, state of Washington and more 
particularly described as follows (the “Property”): 

Parcel B, Boundary Line Adjustment No. 2020-007WE, recorded 
October 23, 2020, under Chelan County Auditor’s File No. 2527854. 
 
Assessor’s Parcel No. 222003440100 
 

2. Earnest Money.  Purchaser shall pay to Central Washington Title Services, Inc. earnest 
money in the amount of One Hundred Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($100,000.00), within 
three (3) business days of the Effective Date.  Earnest money shall be in the form of a check 
made payable to Central Washington Title Services, Inc. and credited to the purchase price at 
Closing, as defined herein.  The earnest money shall be refundable as set forth in Sections 5 and 
8, below. 

3. Purchase Price.  The total purchase price shall be One Million Two Hundred Thousand 
and No/100 Dollars ($1,200,000.00 US), payable in cash at Closing, as defined herein.  
Purchaser represents and warrants to Seller that Purchaser has sufficient funds or access to 
financing in amounts necessary to close this transaction and that obtaining financing is not a 
condition to closing this transaction. 

4. Deed.  At Closing, the Seller shall sign, execute, and deliver a Quitclaim Deed for the 
Property to Purchaser and/or Closing agent. 

5. Title. 

5.1 The following shall not be considered encumbrances or defects of title (hereafter 
“Permitted Exceptions”): 

5.1.1 Rights reserved in federal patents or state deeds, and zoning, building or 
use restrictions general to the area; 

5.1.2 Existing easements, covenants, conditions and restrictions of record or 
apparent on the property that burden or benefit the Property; 



Purchase and Sale Agreement 2 
{PAF2410561.DOC;2/23058.040020/ } 

5.1.3 General real estate taxes, special assessment, or other levies assessed 
against the Property not due and payable; and 

5.1.4 Matters and encroachments that would be discovered by a survey or 
chain of title report. 

5.2 Seller shall make available to Purchaser a preliminary commitment for title 
insurance (“Title Commitment”) issued by Central Washington Title Services, Inc.  Purchaser shall 
give written notice to Seller within fifteen (15) calendar days of Purchaser’s actual receipt of the 
Title Commitment of any defects or encumbrances, other than Permitted Exceptions specified in 
Section 5.1, in Seller’s title to which Purchaser objects (the “Objection”).  Seller shall exercise 
reasonable good faith to attempt to remove matters to which an objection is made.  If Seller is 
unable to cure the defects objected to by Purchaser within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of 
the Objection, unless the time is extended in writing, then Purchaser may elect, as its exclusive 
remedy, either to waive such defects, or to terminate this Agreement and receive a refund of the 
earnest money, subject to Section 5.4 and Section 8.1.1, below. 

5.3 Seller shall deliver to Purchaser at or within a reasonable period following Closing, a 
standard owner’s policy of title insurance (the “Title Policy”) containing no exceptions other than 
the customary form printed exceptions (“Standard Exceptions”), the exceptions in Section 5.1 
(Permitted Exceptions), the exceptions listed in the Title Commitment that Purchaser has accepted 
pursuant to Section 5.2, if any (“Accepted Exceptions”).  Seller shall pay the cost of the Title Policy 
at Closing. 

5.4 If this transaction does not close, and this Agreement is terminated, the Purchaser 
shall be responsible for the cancellation or other fee associated with the Title Commitment. 

6. Waiver of Seller’s Disclosure.  The Purchaser expressly waives the receipt of a “Seller’s 
Disclosure Statement” contemplated under RCW 64.06.013, to the extent permitted under 
Chapter 64.06 RCW. Seller represents that no responses to the questions under the 
“Environmental” section of the Seller’s Disclosure Statement (Form 17) would be “yes” if 
submitted by Seller. 

7. Modification/Waivers.  To be effective and binding upon the Parties hereto, all 
modifications or waivers of any condition of this Agreement shall be in writing and signed by 
the Parties. 

8. Contingencies.   

8.1 Feasibility.  Purchaser shall have forty-five (45) calendar days from the Effective 
Date to review the feasibility of purchasing the Property and to conduct whatever inspections and 
investigations the Purchaser deems appropriate (“Review Period”).  The Purchaser shall have the 
right to enter the Property to conduct inspections and investigation, provided that Purchaser shall 
be solely responsible for restoring the Property to the condition that existed prior to said entry.  
The Purchaser shall be responsible for any and all damage caused to the Property arising from or 



Purchase and Sale Agreement 3 
{PAF2410561.DOC;2/23058.040020/ } 

related to said inspection and investigation and agrees to indemnify and hold the Seller harmless 
in this regard.  At any time during the Review Period, the Purchaser may provide a written notice 
of termination to Seller.   

8.1.1 In this event this Agreement terminates during the Review Period for any 
reason set forth in this Section 8 or as set forth in Section 5.2, above, then this Agreement shall 
terminate and be of no further force or effect between the Parties, and the earnest money shall 
be refunded to the Purchaser (subject to Section 5.4, above), provided that the refund of the 
earnest money is contingent upon the following: all studies, plans, renderings, investigations, 
and the like prepared by Purchaser, or prepared at the direction of Purchaser, associated with 
or related to the Property shall be delivered to Seller. 

8.1.2 The Seller encourages the Purchaser to investigate the following matters 
during the Review Period:   

8.1.2.1 A 39.37 foot-wide portion of the Property is located between 
two adjacent owners and fronts Columbia Street (see Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference).  This space is encumbered by an easement benefiting 
one of the owners and has historically been used to varying degrees by the adjacent owners, 
including the placement of a locked fence along Columbia Street.  An overhead structure is also 
the subject of documents of record. What rights and claims the adjacent parties have to this 
space and the overhead structure, if any, and what restrictions and obligations may exist for a 
future owner of the Property are unclear and unresolved.   

8.1.2.2 The southern access to the Property is off an entrance to the 
BNSF transfer station (see Exhibit “A”).  The Seller is unable to confirm any recorded rights to 
use this entrance. The neighboring property owner to the southwest also uses this entrance for 
parking and access along the east side of the building locating on the southwestern parcel.  The 
Seller is unable to confirm any recorded rights of the adjacent owner to use this entrance or to 
use any of the Seller’s property for this access.  What access rights exist for the Property and 
what rights and claims the adjacent owner may have, if any, to use this entrance and a portion 
of the Property are unclear and unresolved. 

8.1.2.3 The Seller makes no representations regarding the matters set 
forth above.  The Purchaser is encouraged to investigate these matters during the Review 
Period.  If the Purchaser elects to proceed with closing, then Purchaser understands, 
acknowledges and agrees (a) it is taking title to the property by Quitclaim Deed with full 
knowledge of the matters set forth above, and (b) to release the Seller of any and all claims, of 
any kind or nature, regarding the matters set forth above. 

8.2 Pre-Application Meeting with City of Wenatchee.  Purchaser represents that no 
development, permit, or other planning approval is necessary to pursue the uses envisioned by 
Purchaser other than a building permit.  The Purchaser shall schedule and attend a pre-application 
meeting with the City of Wenatchee for the building permit on or before June 11, 2021.  Purchaser 
shall coordinate a time for the pre-application so that representatives of the Seller may attend.   It 



Purchase and Sale Agreement 4 
{PAF2410561.DOC;2/23058.040020/ } 

is the intent of the pre-application meeting to help guide the Parties in the development of the 
exterior plans described in Section 8.3, below, and the pedestrian connectivity described in Section 
8.3, below.  If the Purchaser fails to schedule or attend the pre-application meeting with the City of 
Wenatchee on or before June 11, 2021, then this Agreement shall terminate and Section 8.1.1 
shall apply. 

8.3 Plans.  Purchaser shall prepare renderings, designs, schematics, and the like 
regarding the exterior appearance of the Property upon completion of construction, which shall be 
provided to Seller for review and comment.  Seller’s approval of the exterior renderings must be 
obtained during the Review Period.  Once approved, the renderings for the exterior of the 
Property will be incorporated into the protective covenants described below in Section 8.7.  If the 
renderings for the exterior of the Property are not timely approved, then this Agreement shall 
terminate and Section 8.1.1 shall apply. 

8.4 Pedestrian Connectivity.  It is the intent of the Seller to provide pedestrian 
connectivity along and to Columbia Street.  Plans addressing pedestrian connectivity to and along 
Columbia Street shall be prepared by Purchaser for Seller’s review and comment.  Seller’s approval 
of the plans for pedestrian connectivity must be obtained during the Review Period. Once 
approved, the plans will be incorporated into the protective covenants described below in Section 
8.7.  If the pedestrian connectivity plans are not timely approved, then this Agreement shall 
terminate and Section 8.1.1 shall apply. 

8.5 Shared Access.  The Property shares access to Columbia Street with the adjacent 
property owned by the Seller along and near the northern boundary of the Property.  The form of 
the shared access easement will be prepared by the Seller and reviewed and agreed upon by the 
Parties during the Review Period.  The agreed upon form of easement shall then be attached as an 
exhibit to this Agreement and recorded at closing. If the Parties fail to timely agree on the shared 
access easement during the Review Period, then this Agreement shall terminate and Section 8.1.1 
shall apply. 

8.6 Option to Repurchase.  The Seller shall prepare an “Option to Repurchase” for 
review and approval by the Purchaser during the Review Period.  At a minimum, the Option to 
Repurchase shall include the following events that will trigger the Option to Repurchase: (a) the 
failure to commence construction on the Property within two (2) years of closing, (b) a material 
change in the uses of the Property, and (c) the sale or transfer of all or any portion of the Property 
within five (5) years of closing.  The Option to Repurchase shall be for the original purchase price.  
The agreed upon form of the Option to Repurchase shall be an exhibit to this Agreement and 
recorded at closing. If the Parties fail to timely agree on the Option to Repurchase during the 
Review Period, then this Agreement shall terminate and Section 8.1.1 shall apply. 

8.7 Covenants that Will Survive Closing.  The form of the covenants that will bind the 
Purchaser after closing will be prepared by the CDRPA and reviewed and agreed upon by the 
Parties during the Review Period.  At a minimum the covenants shall include the following events 
that will require the advance approval of the Seller: (a)  any change to the agreed upon pedestrian 
connectivity to Columbia Street; (b) any deviation from the approved plans to the exterior of the 



Purchase and Sale Agreement 5 
{PAF2410561.DOC;2/23058.040020/ } 

buildings (prior to or during construction); (c) any future change to the exterior appearance of the 
buildings (i.e. a change occurring after the initial construction); and (d) any change in use of more 
than twenty-five percent (25%) of the useable space within the buildings on the Property.  In 
addition, the Parties shall establish a standard for the repair, replacement, maintenance, and 
upkeep of the Property to be included in the covenants during the Review Period.  The agreed 
upon form of the covenants shall be attached as an exhibit to this Agreement and recorded at 
closing.  If the Parties fail to timely agree on the covenants to be recorded at closing during the 
Review Period, then this Agreement shall terminate and Section 8.1.1 shall apply. 

9. Default.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement.  If the Seller defaults (that is, fails to 
perform the acts required of it) in its contractual performance herein, the earnest money, 
without deduction or off-set, shall be refunded to the Purchaser as its sole and exclusive 
remedy.  If the Purchaser defaults, the earnest money, upon demand, shall be forfeited and 
paid to Seller as Seller’s sole and exclusive remedy. 

10. Time for Closing - Responsibilities of Parties – Costs. The Closing of this transaction 
shall occur at Central Washington Title Services, Inc., in Wenatchee, Washington upon the 
satisfaction of all contingencies, but, in no event, later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the 
expiration of the feasibility period.  The Purchaser and Seller shall deposit with Central 
Washington Title Services, Inc. all instruments, documents and monies necessary to complete 
the sale in accordance with this Agreement.  The Purchaser and Seller agree to each pay one-
half of the Closing fee.  The Parties shall pay their own attorney’s fees.  Seller will pay for the 
cost of the Title Policy and the excise tax affidavit processing fee.  Purchaser shall pay for the 
preparation of the Quitclaim Deed and Excise Tax Affidavit to be prepared by Seller’s attorney, 
and the recording thereof.  The Parties shall each pay one-half of all other documents to be 
recorded at Closing.  Other items shall be paid according to the practice in Chelan County, 
Washington. 

11. Date of Closing.  For purposes of this agreement, the “date of Closing” or “Closing” shall 
be construed as the date upon which all appropriate documents are recorded and the proceeds 
of this sale are available for disbursement to Seller. 

12. Possession.  Seller shall deliver possession to Purchaser on Closing.   

13. Access to Property.  Prior to gaining access to the Property for any purpose during the 
feasibility period, Purchaser shall name the Port of Chelan County and the Seller as additional 
insureds on a commercial general liability insurance policy in an amount not less than $1 million 
per occurrence and provide a certificate of insurance in this regard.  The form of the certificate 
of insurance and the coverage provided by the insurance policy shall be approved by the Seller 
prior to entry onto the Property by Purchaser.  Purchaser shall be provided an access key to the 
buildings on the Property, provided that it shall notify Stacie de Mestre (Facility and Property 
Development Manager for the Seller), by phone call or email, at least 24 hours prior to each 
entry into the buildings on the Property.  Any kind of invasive testing, including borings or 
samples taken of any kind, must be approved by the Seller prior to the test occurring (in writing 
or email to Purchaser). 



Purchase and Sale Agreement 6 
{PAF2410561.DOC;2/23058.040020/ } 

14. Indemnity.  Purchaser hereby indemnifies and hold the Seller harmless against all 
claims, demands, causes of action, suits or judgments (including attorney’s fees, costs and 
expenses) for death or injury to any person or for loss of damage to property, related to or 
associated with Purchaser, including its engineers, surveyors, architects, contractors, agents, 
members and employees’ access, investigation, use, and/or activities on the Property.  
Purchaser understands and agrees that its duty to indemnify and hold the Seller harmless 
includes, but is not limited to, damages or injuries caused by the negligent or other conduct of 
Purchaser, its engineers, surveyors, architects, contractors, agents, members or employees. 

15. AS-IS; NO WARRANTY. PURCHASER REPRESENTS AND ACKNOWLEDGES IT IS FAMILIAR 
WITH THE PROPERTY, HAS INVESTIGATED SAME, AND HAS BEEN PROVIDED WITH ADDITIONAL 
OPPORTUNITIES TO INVESTIGATE THE PROPERTY PRIOR TO CLOSING. PURCHASER REPRESENTS 
AND ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT IT IS RELYING SOLELY ON ITS INSPECTION AND 
INVESTIGATION OF THE PROPERTY, AND ACCEPTS THE PROPERTY “AS-IS, WHERE IS” IN ITS 
PRESENT CONDITION WITH NO WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, ORAL OR 
WRITTEN, MADE BY SELLER OR ANY EMPLOYEE, AGENT OR REPRESENTATIVE OF SELLER WITH 
RESPECT TO THE CONDITION OF THE PROPERTY. PURCHASER SHALL HAVE DETERMINED TO ITS 
SATISFACTION THAT THE PROPERTY CAN BE USED FOR THE PURPOSES PURCHASER INTENDS. 
PURCHASER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT NEITHER SELLER NOR SELLER’S AGENTS HAVE 
MADE, AND DO NOT MAKE, ANY REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND OR 
CHARACTER WHATSOEVER, WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WITH RESPECT TO THE HABITABILITY, 
CONDITION OR SUITABILITY FOR RESIDENTIAL, COMMERCIAL OR INDUSTRIAL PURPOSES, 
MERCHANTABILITY, POTENTIAL USE OF THE PROPERTY, OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE 
OF THE PROPERTY, OR THE PRESENCE OR ABSENCE OF ANY HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES, WASTES 
OR MATERIALS AS DEFINED BY STATE, FEDERAL OR LOCAL LAW, ALL OF WHICH WARRANTIES 
SELLER HEREBY EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS. PURCHASER ASSUMES FULL RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE 
CONDITION OF THE PROPERTY, KNOWN OR UNKNOWN, AND FOREVER RELEASES THE SELLER OF 
ANY CLAIMS, CAUSES OF ACTION, OR LIABILITY IN THIS REGARD. THIS CLAUSE SHALL BE 
INCLUDED IN THE QUITCLAIM DEED. 

16. Independent Counsel.  Purchaser acknowledges, understands and agrees that Seller is 
represented by Ogden Murphy Wallace, P.L.L.C. and Purchaser has been advised to seek 
independent counsel for legal advice and review of all documents in this transaction. 

17. Brokerage Fees.  Parties represent that they have not incurred finder’s fees, broker’s 
fees or commissions, or similar obligations in connection with the Property which is the subject 
of this Agreement.  Purchaser agrees to indemnify and hold the Seller, its agents, 
representatives, and advisors harmless from any claims or any such fees or commissions and all 
costs and expenses for defending any alleged claim therefor (including costs and attorney’s fees 
on appeal, if any) arising out of the acts of the Purchaser, its agents or employees.   

18. Risk of Loss.  If prior to Closing, improvements on the Property shall be destroyed or 
materially damaged by fire or other casualty, this Agreement, at option of Purchaser, shall 



Purchase and Sale Agreement 7 
{PAF2410561.DOC;2/23058.040020/ } 

become null and void.  If Purchaser elects to continue, all insurance proceeds, if any, shall be 
payable to Purchaser. 

19. Notices.  Notice hereunder shall be in writing and may be mailed or delivered.  If mailed, 
such notices shall be sent postage prepaid, certified or registered mail, return receipt 
requested, and the date marked on the return receipt by the United States Postal Service shall 
be deemed to be the date on which the Party received the notice.  Notices shall be mailed or 
delivered as follows: 

 TO SELLER:    Port of Chelan County 
      One Campbell Parkway, Suite A 
      East Wenatchee, WA 98802 
      Attn: James M. Kuntz, Executive Director 
 
 TO PURCHASER:   Centwa, LLC 
 d/b/a Restoration 1 of Central WA 
   
   
 Attn:  
 
20. Governing Law and Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in 
accordance with Washington law.  Any litigation arising out of or in connection with this 
Agreement shall be conducted in Chelan County, Washington. 

21. Successors.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the 
respective successors, heirs and assigns of each of the Parties. 

22. Encumbrance During Interim.  Seller may not financially encumber the Property prior to 
Closing, unless the encumbrance is discharged or satisfied at Closing. 

23. Survival.  The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall not survive Closing and shall 
merge with the recording of the Quitclaim Deed and documents described in Section 8. 

24. Attorney’s Fees.  If any suit or proceeding is instituted by the Seller or the Purchaser 
arising from or related to this Agreement, including, but not limited to, filing of suit or 
requesting an arbitration, mediation or alternative dispute resolution process (collectively 
“proceedings”), and appeals and collateral actions relative to such suit or proceedings, each 
Party shall be responsible for its own attorney fees and costs incurred. 

25. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed separately or independently in any 
number of counterparts and may be delivered by manually signed counterpart or electronically.  
Each and all of these counterparts shall be deemed to have been executed simultaneously and 
for all purposes to be one document, binding as such on the parties.  The electronic 
transmission of any signed original document, and retransmission of any signed electronic 
transmission, shall be the same as delivery of an original.  At the request of either party, or the 



Purchase and Sale Agreement 8 
{PAF2410561.DOC;2/23058.040020/ } 

Escrow Agent, the parties will confirm electronically transmitted signatures by signing an 
original document. 

26. Corporate Authority; Binding Signatures.  Each of the individuals executing this 
Agreement on behalf of Purchaser or Seller warrant that they are an authorized signatory of the 
entity for which they are signing, and have sufficient authority to execute this Agreement. 

27. General Provisions.  Time is of the essence.  There are no verbal agreements which 
modify this Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the full understanding between Seller and 
Purchaser.  Any and all modifications of this Agreement must be in writing and signed by both 
Parties in order to be binding on the Parties.  Purchaser’s rights under this Agreement may not 
be assigned.  The “Effective Date” shall mean the date of the last signature set forth below. 

DATED:  DATED:  
 
SELLER:      PURCHASER: 
 
PORT OF CHELAN COUNTY CENTWA, LLC 
 
 
By:   By:   
 James M. Kuntz, Executive Director 
   Name:  
 
   Title:  



Purchase and Sale Agreement 9 
{PAF2410561.DOC;2/23058.040020/ } 

EXHIBIT “A” 
Depiction of Columbia Street Shared Area and Southern Access 

 

 



Chelan Douglas Regional 
Port Authority 

 

Memo 
To: Board of Directors  

From: Stacie de Mestre 

cc: Jim Kuntz  

Date: May 5, 2021 

Re: IB 2 Pavement Preservation – Authorization to Solicit Bids 

 
A line item of $150,000 was included in the 2021 Budget to repave the 
IB 2 parking lot to address ongoing drainage issues.  RH2 
Engineering was awarded a task authorization for $20,000 to complete 
the construction documents.  The scope of work consists of grinding 
the existing asphalt, fine grading the grindings to re-establish positive 
drainage, pave new 2.5” asphalt surface, adjust catch basins to grade, 
re-establish pavement markings, and replace damaged curbing.   
 
The parking lot is shared with the Wenatchee School District.  They 
were approached to see if they would like to participate in the project 
as addressing some grading/drainage issues in their portion of the 
parking lot would benefit the CDRPA.  They agreed and the scope of 
work was modified – see attached for the project drawings.  The 
engineers estimate for the construction contract (including the WSD 
portion) is $142,000 including sales tax.  Based on the engineer’s 
estimate of work, the Wenatchee School District has agreed to 
reimburse the CDRPA for 32% of the construction contract and 
engineering fees.   
 
The estimated project schedule is as follows: 



Solicit Bids   May 14, 2021  
Bids Due    May 28, 2021 
Contract Award   June 8, 2021 
Start Construction  After July 5, 2021 
Construction Complete Prior to August 25, 2021 
 
The 2021 Delegation of Authority requires Board approval prior to 
seeking bids for projects over $100,000.  Staff is seeking authorization 
to solicit bids for the IB 2 Pavement Preservation project via the small 
works roster.  Board approval will be sought prior to awarding the 
contract.   
 
   



COLD PLANING AREA

CONCRETE CURB REMOVAL

DEMOLITION LEGEND

CONCRETE CURB

ASPHALT OVERLAY

STRIPING

PROPOSED LEGEND

CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY
INDUSTRIAL BUILDING 2 PAVEMENT PRESERVATION

CALL 48 HOURS BEFORE YOU DIG
ONE CALL 811

REPORT ALL SPILLS
DEPT. OF ECOLOGY 1-800-258-5990

May. 5, 2021

IB2-P-COV.DWG

CB CATCH BASIN

CONC CONCRETE

CL CENTERLINE

CPEP CORRUGATED POLYETHYLENE

CSBC CRUSHED SURFACING BASE COURSE

CSTC CRUSHED SURFACING TOP COURSE

DIAM DIAMETER

DI DUCTILE IRON

DWG DRAWING

E EASTING

ELEV ELEVATION

EOP EDGE OF PAVEMENT

EX EXISTING

HMA HOT MIXED ASPHALT

L LEFT

LT LEFT

LF LINEAR FEET

N NORTHING

PE POLYETHYLENE

PROP PROPOSED

PVC POLYVINYL CHLORIDE

R RIGHT

RT RIGHT

ROW RIGHT-OF-WAY

SPEC SPECIFICATIONS

SS SANITARY SEWER

SSMH SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

ST STORM

STA STATION LINE

STD STANDARD

SY SQUARE YARDS

TYP TYPICAL

W WATER

PROJECT VICINITY MAP GENERAL NOTES DRAWING INDEX

PROJECT LOCATION MAP

EAST

WENATCHEE

WENATCHEE

CASHMERE

MONITOR

PROJECT LOCATION

ROCK

ISLAND

CONTACT AGENCY PHONE

ERIK HOWE, P.E. (PROJECT MANAGER) RH2 ENGINEERING 509-886-6761

QUENTIN CHALMERS (STAFF ENGINEER) RH2 ENGINEERING 360-209-3622

STACIE DE MESTRE (PUBLIC WORKS MANAGER) REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY 509-884-4700

CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY
INDUSTRIAL BUILDING 2 PAVEMENT PRESERVATION

PROJECT LOCATION

PENNY ROAD

I

S

E

N

H

A

R

T

 

A

V

E

T
E

C
H

N
O

L
O

G
Y

 
C

E
N

T
E

R
 
W

A
Y

1. ALL WORKMANSHIP, CONSTRUCTION AND MATERIALS SHALL BE PERFORMED OR SUPPLIED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

THE SPECIAL PROVISIONS, PLANS, AND THE WSDOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROAD, BRIDGE, AND MUNICIPAL

CONSTRUCTION, CURRENT EDITION, AS ISSUED BY THE WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND

THE AMERICAN PUBLIC WORKS ASSOCIATION, WHICH IS HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS THE STANDARD

SPECIFICATIONS.

2. A PRECONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE IS REQUIRED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION, AND 48 HOURS ADVANCE NOTIFICATION

PRIOR TO ACTUAL START OF WORK IS REQUIRED.

3. NO SURVEY WAS COMPLETED FOR THIS PROJECT AND EXISTING UTILITIES ARE NOT SHOWN ON THE PLANS EXCEPT

THE VISIBLE SURFACE FEATURES AS CALLED OUT. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DETERMINE THE EXACT LOCATION OF

ALL EXISTING UTILITIES PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK TO AVOID DAMAGE OR DISTURBANCE, AND AGREES TO BE

FULLY RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY AND ALL DAMAGES WHICH MIGHT BE CAUSED BY THE CONTRACTOR'S FAILURE TO

EXACTLY LOCATE AND PRESERVE ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.

4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT BUILDINGS, FENCES, APPURTENANCES, ABOVE GROUND UTILITIES, AND OTHER

PROPERTY ADJACENT TO ALL CONSTRUCTION AREAS. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR

REPAIRING ALL DAMAGE CAUSED BY CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES.

5. IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY AIR QUALITY STANDARDS, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE

RESPONSIBLE FOR CONTROLLING ALL FUGITIVE DUST THAT MAY BE GENERATED BY THE CONSTRUCTION PROJECT.

6. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SECURE NECESSARY PERMITS PRIOR TO STARTING CONSTRUCTION. SEE SPECIAL

PROVISIONS FOR FURTHER INFORMATION REGARDING PERMITS.

7. ONSITE EROSION CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR AND BE IN PLACE PRIOR

TO CONSTRUCTION. ANY PROBLEMS OCCURRING BEFORE FINAL ACCEPTANCE BY THE REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY

SHALL BE CORRECTED BY THE CONTRACTOR.  UPON FINAL ACCEPTANCE BY THE REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY, OR AS

OTHERWISE DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE ALL TEMPORARY, NON-DEGRADABLE

EROSION CONTROL MEASURES.

8. ANY REVISIONS TO PLANS MUST BE MADE BY THE ENGINEER AND APPROVED BY THE REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY

PRIOR TO ANY IMPLEMENTATION IN THE FIELD.

9. ALL PAVEMENT MARKINGS AND SIGNING SHALL CONFORM TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE MUTCD.

10.  A COPY OF THE APPROVED PLANS MUST BE ON THE JOB SITE WHENEVER CONSTRUCTION IS IN PROGRESS.

11. WHERE NEWLY CONSTRUCTED PAVING MEETS EXISTING PAVING, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SAW CUT OR OVERLAY

AND FEATHER NEW PAVEMENT TO PROVIDE A SMOOTH TRANSITION FROM EXISTING TO PROPOSED PAVING.

APPLICATION OF A THIN TACK COAT OF EMULSIFIED ASPHALT SHALL BE APPLIED TO ENSURE PROPER BONDING.

12. THE COMPLETED SURFACE OF ALL COURSES SHALL BE OF UNIFORM TEXTURE, SMOOTH, UNIFORM AS TO CROWN AND

GRADE, AND FREE FROM DEFECTS OF ALL KINDS.

13. MATERIALS SAMPLING AND TESTING SHALL BE AT A FREQUENCY AND MAGNITUDE AS SPECIFIED IN THE STANDARD

SPECIFICATIONS OR DETERMINED BY THE ENGINEER. A PRIVATE AND INDEPENDENT TESTING LABORATORY SHALL

PERFORM TESTING AND SAMPLING. CERTIFIED TEST REPORTS SHALL BE FURNISHED FOR ALL TESTS PERFORMED BY

PRIVATE TESTING LABORATORIES.  THE REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY WILL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ACCEPTANCE

TESTING.

LEGEND

SHEET NO. SHEET TITLE DWG NO.

1 COVER & GENERAL NOTES COV

2 EXISTING SITE & DEMOLITION PLAN C01

3 PROPOSED SITE PLAN C02

CONTACT PERSONNEL
ABBREVIATIONS



1

3

DEMOLITION NOTES

COLD PLANE (MILL) ASPHALT TO A DEPTH OF 2.5".

2 REMOVE AND DISPOSE OF CONCRETE CURB.

PROTECT EXISTING CONCRETE IN PLACE.

4

PROTECT EXISTING LIGHT AND FOUNDATION IN

PLACE.

5

GRIND AND PAVE AROUND EXISTING UTILITIES. PROTECT

EXISTING UTILITY COVERS IN PLACE.

VICINITY MAP

Q
B

K
C

E
H

A
p
r
 
5
,
 
2
0
2
1

M
a
y
 
5
,
 
2
0
2
1

R
P

A
2
0
-
0
0
2
6

I
B

2
-
P

-
P

R
E

P
.
D

W
G

SHOWN

C01 2

3

DWG NO.:

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

BY
RE

VI
EW

EN
G

IN
EE

R:
SA

VE
 D

AT
E:

RE
VI

EW
ED

:
PL

O
T 

DA
TE

:

CL
IE

NT
:

FI
LE

NA
M

E:

SHEET NO.:

JO
B 

NO
.:

NO
.

0" 1" 2"
DRAWING IS FULL SCALE WHEN

BAR MEASURES 2"

SCALE:

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 S
IT

E
 &

 D
E

M
O

LI
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N

EXISTING SITE & DEMOLTION PLAN

PHOTO 1: SITE ENTRANCE

PLAN VIEW

THIS SHEET

PENNY ROAD

I

S

E

N

H

A

R

T

 

A

V

E

1

2 2

3

3 3

3

3

3

3

4

4

5

5

5

2

2

1

REMOVE AND DISPOSE OF

CURB

DIVISION BETWEEN REGIONAL

PORT AUTHORITY AND WENATCHEE

SCHOOL DISTRICT. NOT RELEVANT

TO CONTRACTOR.

COVERED PARKING AREA,

PROTECT EXISTING

COLUMNS AND COLUMN

FOUNDATIONS IN PLACE.

C
H

E
LA

N
 D

O
U

G
LA

S
R

E
G

IO
N

A
L 

P
O

R
T 

A
U

TH
O

R
IT

Y
IN

D
U

S
TR

IA
L 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 2
 P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T 
P

R
E

S
E

R
V

A
TI

O
N

NOTE: CONTRACTOR SHALL WALK THE SITE WITH A METAL DETECTOR

PRIOR TO GRINDING OPERATIONS. CONTRACTOR SHALL GRIND

AROUND METAL FEATURES.

EXISTING METAL

PIPE AT SURFACE.

EXISTING CONCRETE

PADS. CONTRACTOR

SHALL GRIND TO TOP

OF CONCRETE.



GENERAL NOTES

1. PAVEMENT MARKINGS SHALL BE PAINTED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH WSDOT STD. SPEC. 8-22.

2. DIMENSIONS SHOWN ARE MEASURED FROM CENTER OF

STRIPE, BUILDING EDGE OR FEATURE.

3. GRADE ASPHALT GRINDINGS TO DRAIN TO BOTH EXISTING

DRAINS ON SITE AS INDICATED ON PLAN VIEW.

4. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE SURVEY AS NEEDED TO

ENSURE  DRAINAGE TO EXISTING STORM SYSTEM.

5. CONTRACTOR SHALL HAUL OFF EXCESS GRINDINGS.

VICINITY MAP

Q
B

K
C

E
H

M
a
y
 
5
,
 
2
0
2
1

M
a
y
 
5
,
 
2
0
2
1

R
P

A
2
0
-
0
0
2
6

I
B

2
-
P

-
C

I
V

.
D

W
G

SHOWN

C02 3

3

DWG NO.:

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

BY
RE

VI
EW

EN
G

IN
EE

R:
SA

VE
 D

AT
E:

RE
VI

EW
ED

:
PL

O
T 

DA
TE

:

CL
IE

NT
:

FI
LE

NA
M

E:

SHEET NO.:

JO
B 

NO
.:

NO
.

0" 1" 2"
DRAWING IS FULL SCALE WHEN

BAR MEASURES 2"

SCALE:

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

C
H

E
LA

N
 D

O
U

G
LA

S
R

E
G

IO
N

A
L 

P
O

R
T 

A
U

TH
O

R
IT

Y
IN

D
U

S
TR

IA
L 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 2
 P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T 
P

R
E

S
E

R
V

A
TI

O
N

PLAN VIEW

THIS SHEET

ASPHALT OVERLAY PER

DETAIL THIS SHEET

9.0' TYP.

9.0' TYP.

9.0'

TYP.

18.0'

TYP.

10.1'

4.0'

8.6'

12.0'

9.5'

15.1'

TYPE 6 EXTRUDED CONC.

CURB PER WSDOT

STANDARD PLAN F-10.42-00

SLOPE ARROW, SHOWS

PROPOSED GRADING DIRECTION

TO ROUTE FLOW TO EXISTING

CATCH BASINS, TYP.

EX. SITE DRAIN #2

EX. SITE DRAIN #1

COMPACTED ASPHALT GRINDINGS AS NEEDED TO

PROVIDE POSITIVE FLOW TO EXISTING DRAINAGE

STRUCTURES - DEPTH VARIES

2.5" HMA CL.

3

8

" PG64-28

ASPHALT OVERLAY DEPTH MIN.

24.0' TYP.

18.0' TYP.

18.0' TYP.

PROPOSED SITE PLAN
PENNY ROAD

I

S

E

N

H

A

R

T

 

A

V

E

17 STALLS ALONG SOUTH FENCE

1
2

 
S

T
A

L
L

S
 
U

N
D

E
R

N
E

A
T

H
 
C

O
V

E
R

E
D

 
P

A
R

K
I
N

G
 
A

R
E

A

7
 
S

T
A

L
L

S
 
A

L
O

N
G

 
W

E
S

T
 
F

E
N

C
E

ASPHALT OVERLAY DETAIL

5.0'

EX. NATIVE SOIL





Information Sheet 

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 

Latino Trades Workshop Space & Mercado Concept 

Pangborn Airport Business Park 

 

Project Description 

• Adaptive Reuse Project of the former Giga Watt pods at the 
Pangborn Airport Business Park. 
 

• As a result of Giga Watt Chapter 11 bankruptcy, the Regional 
Port received ownership of the Giga Watt pods as of June 2020. 
 

• A full buildout of the Giga Watt site would have had 25 
structures on approximately 8 acres. At the time of bankruptcy 
there were 13 completed buildings, 4 partial buildings, and 8 
foundations. Waterlines and electrical conduit have been 
installed to the buildings and there is the ability to connect each 
building to sewer. 
 

• The Regional Port received a $50,000 Community Economic 
Revitalization Grant (CERB) in July 2020. The Regional Port 
provided a $12,000 local match. The grant was used to 
determine the feasibility of reusing/remodeling the existing 
structures for small business production spaces.  
 

• The CERB feasibility study is nearing completion. As community 
input was solicited, the need to provide affordable small 
shop/production spaces for Latino Trades businesses has 
become apparent. This type of space is simply not available in 
the Greater Wenatchee Valley. 
 

• The Regional Port has requested the consultants update the 
feasibility study with a design emphasis for a Latino Trades 
District. This could also include the incorporation of a Mercado, 
which would help create a sense of place and community.  
 



Pod Remodel Features 
 

• 1,255 total rentable square footage 
• Open concept floorplan 
• ADA sized bathroom 
• Glass folding doors 

 
Remodel/Repurposing Costs 
 

• Site preparation & infrastructure costs $  1,551,700 
• Building remodeling     $10,047,200 

Total Costs $11,598,900 
Cost Drivers 

• Prevailing wage 
• Energy code compliancy 
• Rising cost of construction materials 

 
Possible Funding Sources 

• Regional Port Authority 
• Congressional Appropriation 
• EDA Grant 
• CARES Act Funding 
• Tax Increment Financing 
• Other 

 
Initial Leasing Rate Concept 

• 1,255 sq. ft.  
• $0.85 per sq. ft. per month 

 
Monthly Rent   $1,066.75 
Tax     $   136.97 
Total Monthly Rent  $1,203.72 
Plus: utilities  
 
 
 
 



Initial Tenant Leasing Criteria (Non-Discriminatory Basis) 
• Income level 
• Family owned & operated 
• Current home based business 
• Started business within last 3 years  

 
Overall Goal 
In the Wenatchee Valley, many small businesses are having a hard 
time finding affordable small spaces and are being forced to use their 
garages or operate out of mini storage units. At completion, the 
Regional Port’s trades workshop space will provide 25 affordable, 
1,255 sq. ft. production spaces with an emphasis on design that will 
create a sense of place for a traditionally underserved population in 
the valley. 



Hispanic/Latinx Demographics 

 

Census – Annual Business Survey 

Wenatchee Metro (Chelan & Douglas Counties) 

• 328 Hispanic/Latinx firms 
• 1,982 employees 
• $41.9 million annual payroll 

 

Overall Wenatchee Hispanic/Latinx Metro Percentages 

• 10.8% all metro firms 
• 5.7% of all employees 
• 2.8% of all payroll 

Important note: Above data refers to “employer firms,” that is firms with a payroll 
other than owner. 

 

Wenatchee Metro Population Demographics 

• 30% of the population is of Hispanic/Latinx descent. 
• Hispanic/Latinx firms are underrepresented in the two county 

area. 

 
United Stated Comparisons  

• Hispanic/Latinx share of all U.S. firms = 5.8% 
• Hispanic/Latinx share of all U.S. employers = 2.3% 
• Hispanic/Latinx share of total U.S. Payroll = 1.5%  

Notes:  

• Wenatchee Metro outperforming U.S. in Hispanic/Latinx firms. 
• However, Hispanic/Latinx share of population in Wenatchee Metro is 1.6 x    

its U.S. share. So when you adjust (multiply the U.S. shares by 1.6) the 
Wenatchee Metro still outperforms the U.S., but not by as much. 

 



Washington State – Census Information 

Monthly earning Q1 2018 (the latest data) 

 

Overall monthly average $3,981 

Hispanic/Latinx   $2,510 

Difference    $1,471 

 

Stanford University Study 

Nationally, Latino business owners grew 34% over the past ten years 
compared to 1% for all other business owners. 

 
Thanks to Dr. Patrick Jones @ Eastern Washington University for supplying this 
information. 

 



5/5/2021

1

Site Location: Pangborn Airport Business Park

Site Location: Pangborn Airport Business Park



5/5/2021

2

Existing Site Condition: 13 framed buildings, 4 partial buildings, & 8 foundations

Current Buildings



5/5/2021

3

Current Buildings

New Design Concept



5/5/2021

4

New Design Concept

Flex Space Interior Concept



5/5/2021

5

Flex Space Interior Concept

Latino Trades Workshop Campus





















sector capital investments, and new taxes. 

• Installation of electric vehicle charging stations in Chelan County. 

• Acquisition and rehabilitation of rail lines in Chelan Countv. 

• Acquisition, construction, and improvement of recreation facilities and systems. 

• Utility imorovements including new services, extensions, relocations and 
re_babUitaUi:rn of water. sewer, roadway, fiber optics, gas. power, rail. 
wavfinding/signage, pedestrian safety, bike infrastructure. and street lighting in 
unincorporated Chelan County. 

• Feasibility studv. marketing analysis. wood supoly studv. construction. and 
utility improvements for a regional mill site. 

• Construction of buildings, utilities, restroom facilities. kitchen, fencing, and 
stage for a community market and cultural plaza. 

• All projects listed in the most currently adopted Chelan Douglas Regional Port 
Authority Economic Development Plan. 

Chelan County 

Chelan County Campus Buildio11s 

• Repair. remodeling, and replacement of existing County owned buildings. 

• Acquisition of additional property to expand County Campus 

• - Utility improvements including new services. extensions. relocations and 
rehabilitation of water, sewer, roadway, fiber optics, gas and power. 

Parks and Recreation 

• All projects listed in the Parks and Recreation element of this Chelan County 
Comprehensive Plan. 

• All signage related to trails and trailheads. 

• Feasibility study, marketing analysis. construction. and utility improvements for 
a Chelan County Whitewater Park. 

Miscellaneous 

• Projects listed in the capital facilities section of the county's comprehensive 
plan. 

• Acquisition of land and/or buildings throughout Chelan Countv for economic 
development that will facilitate job creating opportunities. private sector 
capital investments. and new taxes. 

City of Cashmere 

• Utility img_rovements including new services, extensions, relocations and 
rehabilit!1jon of water+,sswer, r.oadwav. fiber optics. gas, power. rail. 

Chelan County Comprehensive Plan Economic Development Element 
December ~2_Q2_0 

Page 7 of JJJ.6 

Attachment A

Stacie
Highlight

Stacie
Highlight



 

 

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority – 2020 Economic Development Plan 

 

3.21. Capitalize on the region’s outdoor recreation resources as a way to attract new businesses 
and professionals. 

 
Benchmarks for Marketing & Advertising 
1. Track number of website hits on CDRPA’s information websites. 
2. Track Social Media activity on CDRPA sites. This includes increased Followers on 

Facebook, Instagram, and LinkedIn. 
3. Track click through rates on quarterly CDRPA newsletter. 
4. Specific examples of citizen feedback on CDRPA’s marketing & advertising efforts. 

 
 

4. Site & Infrastructure Development 
4.1. Continue to work on additional commercial air service at Pangborn Memorial Airport, and 

to make needed infrastructure investments in support of that added air service. 
4.2. Work with our Federal delegation to fund an enhanced runway lighting system to reduce 

the number of cancelled flights during inclement weather. 
4.3. Develop, fund, and manage a Partners in Economic Development Program for nonprofits to 

enhance the economic development efforts in the region. 
4.4. Develop, fund, and manage a Partners in Economic Development Program for 

municipalities to enhance the economic development efforts in the region. 
4.5. Work with the Public Utility Districts regarding system capacity and large-load customers. 
4.6. Promote new and expanded business opportunities associated with energy generation, 

storage, efficiencies, and conservation.  
4.7. Advocate for funding for public infrastructure projects in Chelan and Douglas Counties that 

support economic development efforts. 
4.8. Identify and develop (if necessary) suitable sites and/or buildings for new economic 

development opportunities.  
4.9. Participate in Counties’ and Cities’ updates on their comprehensive plans.  Make sure plans 

support proactive economic development policies.  
4.10. Explore opportunities to redevelop the Alcoa Site. 
4.11. Continue to explore the redevelopment of the Rock Island Silicon Site into an Energy and 

Technology Innovation Campus.  
4.12. Continue to support and promote the development of the Wenatchi Landing area, 

consistent with the Subarea Plan and Planned Action Environmental Impact Statement.  
4.13. Continue collaboration with the Chelan PUD and City of Wenatchee on the 5th Street PUD 

Redevelopment Plan. 
4.14. Continue to advocate for and support the Apple Capital Loop INFRA Grant project that 

addresses safety and mobility on North Wenatchee Avenue through construction of 
Confluence Parkway, connects South Wenatchee and the Apple Capital Loop Trail with a 
pedestrian bridge, completes the interchange near Cascade Avenue (Wenatchi Landing 
area), and improves safety on Sunset Highway from 9th to 19th streets. 

4.15. Continue to work with Douglas County PUD on their hydrogen project. 
4.16. Work with the Douglas PUD to develop a substation at the Pangborn Airport Business Park.  
4.17. Pursue adequate water supply and the expansion of utilities in development expansion 

projects. 

Stacie
Highlight



Parcel C 

Port of Chelan County 
Cashmere Mill Site 

Information From: 
Record of Survey dated 9/28/201, 
Auditors Recording Number 2349712 

Attachment B

rasplund
Polygon

rasplund
Typewriter
Parcel C

rasplund
Typewriter
679+/- ft.

rasplund
Typewriter
697+/- ft.

rasplund
Typewriter
112+/- ft.

rasplund
Typewriter
74+/- ft.

rasplund
Text Box
9/28/2011

rasplund
Typewriter
Sunset Highway

rasplund
Typewriter
1.49+/- Acres



Site Plan (North)

Former Cashmere Mill Site
Cashmere, Washington

Figure 3

Notes:
1. Parcel labels in drawing refer to the last three digits in the parcel numbers below. 
Parcels in map include: 
     231905924005, 231905925010, 231905110650, 231905110550, 231905110500, 
     231905110600, 231905141200, 231905110150, 231905141250, 231905924070.
2. The locations of all features shown are approximate.
3. This drawing is for information purposes. It is intended
to assist in showing features discussed in an attached document.
GeoEngineers, Inc. cannot guarantee the accuracy and content
of electronic files. The master file is stored by GeoEngineers, Inc.
and will serve as the official record of this communication.

Projection: NAD 1983 StatePlane Washington North FIPS 4601 Feet

Previous Explorations Not Tested
Previous Explorations < MTCA
Method A Cleanup Levels
Previous Explorations > MTCA 
Method A Cleanup Levels
Pipeline

GeoEngineers Explorations Not Tested
GeoEngineers Explorations < MTCA
Applicable Method A or B Cleanup Levels
GeoEngineers Explorations > MTCA 
Applicable Method A or B Cleanup Levels
Surface Water Location
Regulatory Levels Not Applicable

Inlet at No Name Creek
Bypass
No Name Creek
Bypass Vault
Water Structure
No Name Creek Culvert
Approximate Alignment

Approximate Location of
Previous Remedial 
Excavation Areas
Estimated Extent of
Contaminated Soil
Requiring Removal 
Approximate Project
Site Boundary

Of
fic

e: 
SE

A
Pa

th:
 P:

\18
\18

59
30

01
\G

IS\
MX

D\
18

59
30

01
02

_F
igu

re 
3.m

xd
Ma

p R
ev

ise
d: 

04
 Ap

ril 
20

14
    

 cc
ab

rer
a Sunset Highway

Mill Road

Parcel 010

Parcel 005

Parcel 550

TP-9-2012 S-2-102009

N-DP-8
(5.5-6.5)

ORPH = 11,000 mg/kg

1,670ft2 x 8ft / 27 ft = 500yd3

π x 52 x 8ft/27 = 20 yd3 Wood Waste Excavation

Storm Line PCS
Area Excavation

PCS Area 2 Excavation

Wood Post
Soil Excavation

Debris Excavation

Phase 1

Phase 2

N-DP-47 N-DP-33

N-DP-19

N-DP-11

N-DP-38 N-DP-13
N-DP-27

7' to 8'
Mercury = 2.1 mg/kg
cPAHs = 0.102 mg/kg

N-DP-39

N-DP-45 N-DP-35
N-DP-23

N-DP-31

N-DP-51

N-DP-16

N-DP-7

N-DP-54
N-DP-48

N-DP-2

N-DP-44

N-DP-36

N-DP-15
N-DP-30

N-DP-25
N-DP-10

N-DP-5

N-DP-53

N-DP-49
N-DP-43

N-DP-52

N-DP-50

N-DP-3

N-DP-42

N-DP-1

N-DP-21A N-DP-9

N-DP-24

N-DP-6

N-DP-33A

N-DP-35A

N-DP-32

N-DP-42A

N-DP-3B
N-DP-3A

N-DP-5A

N-DP-21

N-DP-8A

N-DP-5B

N-DP-43B

NDP8-TP1

NDP8-TP4 NDP8-TP2
NDP8-TP5

S-DP-1B

TP-2-2007

B-7
A

TP-1-2007

B-1A

B

TP-5-2012

TP-3-2007

TP-GW4

TP-GW2TP-10-2012

TP-3-2012

TP-1-2012

TP-6-2012 TP-5-2012

TP-8-2012
TP-7-2012

TP-2-2012

TP-4-2012

TP-2-052009

S-8-092009

S-7-092009

S-5-092009
S-4-092009

S-3-092009

S-1-092009

S-2-092009

G-S-1

G-S-2

B-6, TP-GW3

S-6-092009

MW-1

MW-2

MW-3

B-1

MW-4

N-DP-43A

N-DP-44A

NDP8-TP3
6'

ORPH = 10,500 mg/kg

Parcel 500

Parcel 650

Wenatchee
River

Downstream

Data References
Existing site boundary, parcel, previous explorations, remedial site 
boundaries, and PCS Soil stockpiles based on data provided by 
Maul, Foster & Alongi, Inc. (MFA) and RH2 Engineering Inc., 2013.
Bypass vault, inlet and creek culvert alignment from MFA, April, 2014.
Imagery from Google Earth Pro, 2013

0 80

Feet



1

2

3
CA

30

24

40

Light brown silty fine to coarse gravel with
occasional organic matter (grass) (moist) (fill)

Brown wood waste (fill)

Gray fine to coarse gravel with silt (moist) (fill)

Dark brown to red silt with occasional wood
waste (moist) (fill)

Gray fine to coarse gravel with silt and sand (wet)

Boring terminated at approximately 15 foot depth
due to refusal

GM

FILL

GP-GM

ML

GP-GM

NS

NS

NS

SS

NS

<1

<1

<1

<1

<1

Groundwater observed between
approximately 11 and 12 feet during drilling

Total
Depth (ft)

Hammer
Data

System
Datum

Start End
Checked By
Logged By

DRLDrilled

Notes:

ERH

Surface Elevation (ft)
Vertical Datum

Driller

Groundwater
Depth to
Water (ft)Date Measured Elevation (ft)

Latitude
Longitude

47.52169033570
-120.47769967400

Geoprobe

Cascade Drilling Drilling
Method

Direct-Push15

Drilling
Equipment

Geographic
WGS84

9/14/20139/14/2013

Undetermined

Notes:  See Figure A-1 for explanation of symbols.

FIELD DATA

D
ep

th
 (

fe
et

)

0

5

10

15

In
te

rv
al

E
le

va
tio

n 
(f

ee
t)

S
am

pl
e 

N
am

e
T

es
tin

g

R
ec

ov
er

ed
 (

in
)

G
ra

ph
ic

 L
og

C
o

lle
c

te
d

 S
am

p
le

B
lo

w
s/

fo
ot

MATERIAL
DESCRIPTION

G
ro

up
C

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
n

W
at

er
 L

ev
el

Log of Direct-Push Boring N-DP-11
Former Cashmere Mill Site, Data Gap Assessment

Cashmere, Washington

18593-001-02

Project:

Project Location:

Project Number:
Figure A-26

Sheet 1 of 1

S
he

en

H
ea

ds
pa

ce
V

ap
or

 (
pp

m
) REMARKS

S
po

ka
ne

: 
 D

at
e:

1/
20

/1
4 

P
at

h:
P

:\
18

\1
85

93
00

1\
02

\G
IN

T
\1

85
93

00
10

2.
G

P
J 

 D
B

T
em

pl
at

e/
Li

bT
em

pl
at

e:
G

E
O

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

8.
G

D
T

/G
E

I8
_E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
A

L_
S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D



1

2
CA

3

36

36

20

Light brown silt with occasional gravel and wood
waste (moist) (fill)

Dark brown silty fine to coarse gravel with
occasional wood waste (moist) (fill)

Dark brown silt (moist) (fill?)

Dark gray fine to medium sand with silt (moist)

Gray to light brown fine to coarse gravel with
sand and silt (moist)

Becomes dark gray (moist)

Becomes wet

Boring terminated at approximately 15 foot depth
due to refusal

ML

GM

ML

SP-SM

GP-GM

NS

SS

NS

NS

SS

SS

NS

NS

<1

<1

<1

<1

<1

<1

<1

<1

Groundwater observed at approximately 12
feet during drilling

Total
Depth (ft)

Hammer
Data

System
Datum

Start End
Checked By
Logged By

DRLDrilled

Notes:

ERH

Surface Elevation (ft)
Vertical Datum

Driller

Groundwater
Depth to
Water (ft)Date Measured Elevation (ft)

Latitude
Longitude

47.52184044880
-120.47819359600

Geoprobe

Cascade Drilling Drilling
Method

Direct-Push15

Drilling
Equipment

Geographic
WGS84

9/14/20139/14/2013

Undetermined

Notes:  See Figure A-1 for explanation of symbols.

FIELD DATA

D
ep

th
 (

fe
et

)

0

5

10

15

In
te

rv
al

E
le

va
tio

n 
(f

ee
t)

S
am

pl
e 

N
am

e
T

es
tin

g

R
ec

ov
er

ed
 (

in
)

G
ra

ph
ic

 L
og

C
o

lle
c

te
d

 S
am

p
le

B
lo

w
s/

fo
ot

MATERIAL
DESCRIPTION

G
ro

up
C

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
n

W
at

er
 L

ev
el

Log of Direct-Push Boring N-DP-13
Former Cashmere Mill Site, Data Gap Assessment

Cashmere, Washington

18593-001-02

Project:

Project Location:

Project Number:
Figure A-27

Sheet 1 of 1

S
he

en

H
ea

ds
pa

ce
V

ap
or

 (
pp

m
) REMARKS

S
po

ka
ne

: 
 D

at
e:

1/
20

/1
4 

P
at

h:
P

:\
18

\1
85

93
00

1\
02

\G
IN

T
\1

85
93

00
10

2.
G

P
J 

 D
B

T
em

pl
at

e/
Li

bT
em

pl
at

e:
G

E
O

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

8.
G

D
T

/G
E

I8
_E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
A

L_
S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D



6FT BORING
2.5FT BORING

0FT BORING
0FT BORING

0FT BORING
0FT BORING

PARCEL BOUNDARY

APPROX 4'-6' DEEP
APPROX 2'-4' DEEP
APPROX 0'-2' DEEP
APPROX 0' DEEP
APPROX 0' DEEP

WOOD WASTE EXHIBIT

CASHMERE MILL DISTRICT

5/6/2021J:\Data\RPA\20-0026\TA XY Mapping Support\CAD\2 - Cashmere Mill District\cmd-e-WW.dwg

0" 1/2" 1"
DRAWING IS FULL SCALE WHEN

BAR MEASURES 1"

SCALE:1"=150'

PLOT DATE:
FILE PATH:

5/6/2021
J:\Data\RPA\20-0026\TA XY Mapping Support\CAD\2 - Cashmere
Mill District\cmd-e-WW.dwg

APPROXIMATE WOOD WASTE VOLUME: 3530 CY





A
tta

ch
m

en
t C



















Lease Signed Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Term
Base

Rent/Month

4/2/2021 Synergy Food Solutions LLC OSBP IB2 5,300 SQFT
7/1/2021 ‐ 6/20/2024                   

Option 2/1‐yr terms
$3,700.00 

Renewal Signed Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Term
Base

Rent/Month

4/27/2021 Central WA Motorcyle Training 
Pangborn Business 

Park
57,875 SQFT

4/1/2021 ‐ 10/31/2021 Paved Pad        

4/1/2021 ‐ 3/31/2022  Dirt Pad

$714 .00                        

$286.88 annual

Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Ending

Trent Moyers PMA Storage Storage 4/30/2021

Linda McNett Chelan Airport Storage Storage 4/30/2021

Lease Renewals

$65.00 

$75.00 

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority ‐ Lease Report

Leases & Renewals ‐ General

Reporting Period ‐ April 2021

5/11/2021

New Leases 

Tenants Moving Out

Base

Rent/Month

Executive Director's Authority to Sign Leases

Lease terms of five years duration or less.

Lease payments of $5,000 per month or less.



Lease Signed Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Term
Base

Rent/Month

Renewal Signed Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Term
Base

Rent/Month

Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Ending

None to Report this Period

None to Report this Period

None to Report this Period

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority ‐ Lease Report

Leases & Renewals ‐ Aviation Related

Reporting Period ‐ April 2021

5/11/2021

New Leases 

Executive Director's Authority to Sign Leases

Lease terms of five years duration or less.

Lease payments of $5,000 per month or less.

Tenants Moving Out

Base

Rent/Month

Lease Renewals

 



Lease Signed Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Term
Base

Rent/Month

Renewal Signed Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Term
Base

Rent/Month

Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Ending

None to Report this Period

None to Report this Period

None to Report this Period

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority ‐ Lease Report

Leases & Renewals  ‐ CTC

Reporting Period ‐ April 2021

5/11/2021

New Leases 

Lease payments of $5,000 per month or less.

Lease Renewals

Tenants Moving Out

Base

Rent/Month

Executive Director's Authority to Sign Leases

Lease terms of five years duration or less.



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 

Calendar of Events 5/7/2021

Date Day Event / Location / Time Attending Cami RSVP arrangements if applicable

May 11 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

May 12 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting

May 13 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM

May 18 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 

May 19 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM

May 20-21 Wed-Friday WPPA Spring Meeting; Virtual 6 Commissioners, Jim Kuntz; 

May 20 Thursday GWATA Flywheel; 11:30am - 4pm; Virtual and in person Commissioner Baldwin

May 25 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

May 26 Wednesday

Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 

2:30 pm

May 31 Monday Memorial Day/Office Closed

June 8 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

June 9 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting

June 10 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM

June 15 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 

June 16 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM

June 16-18 Wed-Friday WPPA Finance Seminar; Alderbrook (tentative)

June 22 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

June 23 Wednesday

Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 

2:30 pm

July 5 Monday 4th of July Holiday Observed/Office Closed

July 7-9 Wed-Friday WPPA Director's Seminar; dates and location not firm.

July 8 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM

July 13 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

July 14 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting

July 19-21 Mon-Wednesday

WPPA Commissioner's Seminar; Marcus Whitman Walla 

Walla; tentative

July 20 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 

July 21 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM

July 27 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

July 28 Wednesday

Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 

2:30 pm

August 10 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 

Calendar of Events 5/7/2021

Date Day Event / Location / Time Attending Cami RSVP arrangements if applicable

August 11 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting

August 12 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM

August 17 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 

August 18 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM

August 24 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

August 25 Wednesday

Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 

2:30 pm

September 6 Monday Labor Day/Office Closed

September 8 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting

September 9 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM

September 14 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

September 15 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM

September 21 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 

September 22-24 Wed-Friday WPPA Environmental Seminar; Alderbrook;not yet booked

September 28 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

September 29 Wednesday

Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 

2:30 pm

October 12 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

October 13 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting

October 14 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM

October 19 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 

October 20 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM

October 20-22 Wed-Friday WPPA Small Ports;Enzian; not yet booked and dates not firm

October 26 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

October 27 Wednesday

Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 

2:30 pm

November 9 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

November 10 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting

November 16 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 

November 17 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM

November 18 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM

November 23 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 

Calendar of Events 5/7/2021

Date Day Event / Location / Time Attending Cami RSVP arrangements if applicable

November 24 Wednesday

Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 

2:30 pm

November 25 Thursday Thanksgiving/Office Closed

November 26 Friday Day After Thanksgiving/Office Closed

December 1-3 Wed-Friday

WPPA Annual Meeting; Hyatt Regency Hotel 

Bellevue;tentative

December 8 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting

December 9 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM

December 14 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

December 15 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM

December 21 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 

December 23 Thursday Christmas Holiday Observed Office Closed

December 24 Friday Christmas Holiday Observed Office Closed

December 28 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

December 29 Wednesday

Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 

2:30 pm

December 31 Friday New Years Day Observed/Office Closed


	05-11-2021 Agenda
	Working Together to Enhance the Economic Vitality of North Central Washington
	Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
	Meeting Agenda
	May 11th, 2021


	04-27-2021 Meeting Minutes
	Board of Directors
	Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
	Meeting Minutes
	April 27th, 2021


	CDRPA Resolution 2021-11 Voiding Check 8022
	CDRPA Check Register April Summary
	Check Register 2021-12 04.15.21 PR QTR Reports
	Check Register 2021-13  04.15.21
	Check Register 2021-14  04.30.21 PR
	Check Register 2021-15  04.30.21
	POCC 04.22.21 2021-05 Check Register - Signed
	Port of Douglas Register April
	V. SBDC Presentation to Port Commissoners Q1 2021 May 4 2021 (002)
	2021 Wenatchee SBDC Q1 2021 Report�� 
	Our Stakeholders
	Chelan and Douglas County Residents Attending SBDC Webinars
	Wenatchee SBDC Q1 2021
	Examples of Webinars Conducted By John and Ron in Q1
	SBDC Community Outreach and Participation
	SBDC Community Outreach and Participation

	V. 01 SBDC 1Q21 - Commission
	V. 03 Tax Increment Financing Memo and Docs
	V. 03 Tax Increment Financing Memo and Docs
	V. Tax Increment Financing Presentation

	VI. 01.01 Restoration 1 MEMO
	VI. 01.02 Restoration 1 - Purchase & Sale Agreement
	PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT
	1. Agreement/Property.  Seller agrees to sell and Purchaser agrees to purchase Seller’s interest in real property located in the county of Chelan, state of Washington and more particularly described as follows (the “Property”):
	2. Earnest Money.  Purchaser shall pay to Central Washington Title Services, Inc. earnest money in the amount of One Hundred Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($100,000.00), within three (3) business days of the Effective Date.  Earnest money shall be in th...
	3. Purchase Price.  The total purchase price shall be One Million Two Hundred Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($1,200,000.00 US), payable in cash at Closing, as defined herein.  Purchaser represents and warrants to Seller that Purchaser has sufficient fun...
	4. Deed.  At Closing, the Seller shall sign, execute, and deliver a Quitclaim Deed for the Property to Purchaser and/or Closing agent.
	5. Title.
	5.1 The following shall not be considered encumbrances or defects of title (hereafter “Permitted Exceptions”):
	5.1.1 Rights reserved in federal patents or state deeds, and zoning, building or use restrictions general to the area;
	5.1.2 Existing easements, covenants, conditions and restrictions of record or apparent on the property that burden or benefit the Property;
	5.1.3 General real estate taxes, special assessment, or other levies assessed against the Property not due and payable; and
	5.1.4 Matters and encroachments that would be discovered by a survey or chain of title report.

	5.2 Seller shall make available to Purchaser a preliminary commitment for title insurance (“Title Commitment”) issued by Central Washington Title Services, Inc.  Purchaser shall give written notice to Seller within fifteen (15) calendar days of Purcha...
	5.3 Seller shall deliver to Purchaser at or within a reasonable period following Closing, a standard owner’s policy of title insurance (the “Title Policy”) containing no exceptions other than the customary form printed exceptions (“Standard Exceptions...
	5.4 If this transaction does not close, and this Agreement is terminated, the Purchaser shall be responsible for the cancellation or other fee associated with the Title Commitment.

	6. Waiver of Seller’s Disclosure.  The Purchaser expressly waives the receipt of a “Seller’s Disclosure Statement” contemplated under RCW 64.06.013, to the extent permitted under Chapter 64.06 RCW. Seller represents that no responses to the questions ...
	7. Modification/Waivers.  To be effective and binding upon the Parties hereto, all modifications or waivers of any condition of this Agreement shall be in writing and signed by the Parties.
	8. Contingencies.
	8.1 Feasibility.  Purchaser shall have forty-five (45) calendar days from the Effective Date to review the feasibility of purchasing the Property and to conduct whatever inspections and investigations the Purchaser deems appropriate (“Review Period”)....
	8.1.1 In this event this Agreement terminates during the Review Period for any reason set forth in this Section 8 or as set forth in Section 5.2, above, then this Agreement shall terminate and be of no further force or effect between the Parties, and ...
	8.1.2 The Seller encourages the Purchaser to investigate the following matters during the Review Period:
	8.1.2.1 A 39.37 foot-wide portion of the Property is located between two adjacent owners and fronts Columbia Street (see Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference).  This space is encumbered by an easement benefiting one of...
	8.1.2.2 The southern access to the Property is off an entrance to the BNSF transfer station (see Exhibit “A”).  The Seller is unable to confirm any recorded rights to use this entrance. The neighboring property owner to the southwest also uses this en...
	8.1.2.3 The Seller makes no representations regarding the matters set forth above.  The Purchaser is encouraged to investigate these matters during the Review Period.  If the Purchaser elects to proceed with closing, then Purchaser understands, acknow...


	8.2 Pre-Application Meeting with City of Wenatchee.  Purchaser represents that no development, permit, or other planning approval is necessary to pursue the uses envisioned by Purchaser other than a building permit.  The Purchaser shall schedule and a...
	8.3 Plans.  Purchaser shall prepare renderings, designs, schematics, and the like regarding the exterior appearance of the Property upon completion of construction, which shall be provided to Seller for review and comment.  Seller’s approval of the ex...
	8.4 Pedestrian Connectivity.  It is the intent of the Seller to provide pedestrian connectivity along and to Columbia Street.  Plans addressing pedestrian connectivity to and along Columbia Street shall be prepared by Purchaser for Seller’s review and...
	8.5 Shared Access.  The Property shares access to Columbia Street with the adjacent property owned by the Seller along and near the northern boundary of the Property.  The form of the shared access easement will be prepared by the Seller and reviewed ...
	8.6 Option to Repurchase.  The Seller shall prepare an “Option to Repurchase” for review and approval by the Purchaser during the Review Period.  At a minimum, the Option to Repurchase shall include the following events that will trigger the Option to...
	8.7 Covenants that Will Survive Closing.  The form of the covenants that will bind the Purchaser after closing will be prepared by the CDRPA and reviewed and agreed upon by the Parties during the Review Period.  At a minimum the covenants shall includ...

	9. Default.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement.  If the Seller defaults (that is, fails to perform the acts required of it) in its contractual performance herein, the earnest money, without deduction or off-set, shall be refunded to the Purchas...
	10. Time for Closing - Responsibilities of Parties – Costs. The Closing of this transaction shall occur at Central Washington Title Services, Inc., in Wenatchee, Washington upon the satisfaction of all contingencies, but, in no event, later than fifte...
	11. Date of Closing.  For purposes of this agreement, the “date of Closing” or “Closing” shall be construed as the date upon which all appropriate documents are recorded and the proceeds of this sale are available for disbursement to Seller.
	12. Possession.  Seller shall deliver possession to Purchaser on Closing.
	13. Access to Property.  Prior to gaining access to the Property for any purpose during the feasibility period, Purchaser shall name the Port of Chelan County and the Seller as additional insureds on a commercial general liability insurance policy in ...
	14. Indemnity.  Purchaser hereby indemnifies and hold the Seller harmless against all claims, demands, causes of action, suits or judgments (including attorney’s fees, costs and expenses) for death or injury to any person or for loss of damage to prop...
	15. AS-IS; NO WARRANTY. PURCHASER REPRESENTS AND ACKNOWLEDGES IT IS FAMILIAR WITH THE PROPERTY, HAS INVESTIGATED SAME, AND HAS BEEN PROVIDED WITH ADDITIONAL OPPORTUNITIES TO INVESTIGATE THE PROPERTY PRIOR TO CLOSING. PURCHASER REPRESENTS AND ACKNOWLED...
	16. Independent Counsel.  Purchaser acknowledges, understands and agrees that Seller is represented by Ogden Murphy Wallace, P.L.L.C. and Purchaser has been advised to seek independent counsel for legal advice and review of all documents in this trans...
	17. Brokerage Fees.  Parties represent that they have not incurred finder’s fees, broker’s fees or commissions, or similar obligations in connection with the Property which is the subject of this Agreement.  Purchaser agrees to indemnify and hold the ...
	18. Risk of Loss.  If prior to Closing, improvements on the Property shall be destroyed or materially damaged by fire or other casualty, this Agreement, at option of Purchaser, shall become null and void.  If Purchaser elects to continue, all insuranc...
	19. Notices.  Notice hereunder shall be in writing and may be mailed or delivered.  If mailed, such notices shall be sent postage prepaid, certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, and the date marked on the return receipt by the United ...
	20. Governing Law and Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with Washington law.  Any litigation arising out of or in connection with this Agreement shall be conducted in Chelan County, Washington.
	21. Successors.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the respective successors, heirs and assigns of each of the Parties.
	22. Encumbrance During Interim.  Seller may not financially encumber the Property prior to Closing, unless the encumbrance is discharged or satisfied at Closing.
	23. Survival.  The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall not survive Closing and shall merge with the recording of the Quitclaim Deed and documents described in Section 8.
	24. Attorney’s Fees.  If any suit or proceeding is instituted by the Seller or the Purchaser arising from or related to this Agreement, including, but not limited to, filing of suit or requesting an arbitration, mediation or alternative dispute resolu...
	25. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed separately or independently in any number of counterparts and may be delivered by manually signed counterpart or electronically.  Each and all of these counterparts shall be deemed to have been execute...
	26. Corporate Authority; Binding Signatures.  Each of the individuals executing this Agreement on behalf of Purchaser or Seller warrant that they are an authorized signatory of the entity for which they are signing, and have sufficient authority to ex...
	27. General Provisions.  Time is of the essence.  There are no verbal agreements which modify this Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the full understanding between Seller and Purchaser.  Any and all modifications of this Agreement must be in writ...

	V1. 02 IB2 Pavement Preservation Memo and Docs
	VI. 2 IB 2 Pavement Preservation Authorization to Solicit Bids - Memo
	To:
	From:
	cc:
	Date:
	Re:

	V1. 02  IB2 Pavement Preservation 100-Percent Plans (002)

	00 Latino Works MEMO
	01 Latino Works Information Sheet
	02 Latino Works Demographics
	03 Latino Works Giga Watt Presentation
	VII. 5 CMS Cleanup CPIF Application - FINAL
	CDRPA CPIF Application - Exhibit B.pdf
	CMS Data Map Parcel 500 exploration locations.pdf
	Figure 3. Site Plan (North)



	VII. 8  PMA Aviation Ramp Glycol Collection System
	04 April Lease Reporting
	X. CDRPA Event Calendar



